

CITY OF FORT COLLINS • BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS



ENERGY BOARD

October 13, 2022 – 5:30 pm 222 Laporte Ave – Colorado Room

ROLL CALL

Board Members Present: Alan Braslau, Steve Tenbrink, Dan Gould, Marge Moore (remote), Emilio Ramirez (remote), Jeremy Giovando, John Fassler (remote), Bill Becker, Sidra Aghababian **Board Members Absent**:

OTHERS PRESENT

Staff Members Present: Christie Fredrickson, Kraig Bader, Brian Tholl (remote), Lance Smith **Members of the Public:** Javier Camacho, Rich Stave

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

Chairperson Tenbrink called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.

ANNOUNCEMENTS & AGENDA CHANGES

The board will begin with the Work Plan to allow presenting staff additional time to join the meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT

None.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

In preparation for the meeting, board members submitted amendments via email for the September 8, 2022, minutes. The minutes were approved as amended.

DRAFT 2023 WORK PLAN

(attachments available upon request)

Chairperson Tenbrink explained to the Board what the purpose of the Work Plan is, and how the Board's plans must remain under the umbrella of their codified duties. Several Board members suggested high level changes to the plan but agreed to spend more time looking at it outside of tonight's meeting.

Board member Braslau commented that the use by City Council of the phrase "climate emergency" is justified, but the timing of the City's actions must align accordingly. It is the Board's purview to advise Council about the consequences that the use of this term implies.

The Board agreed to collaborate in a shared file to make suggested edits ahead of approval at the November meeting.

2023 RATES & FEES

Lance Smith, Director, Utilities Financial Planning & Assets (attachments available upon request)

Mr. Smith prefaced this discussion by noting there is an important distinction between monthly ongoing utility rates and one-time fees & charges. Ongoing rates recover the operation and maintenance of the

MINUTES

CITY OF FORT COLLINS • BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS



ENERGY BOARD

REGULAR MEETING

Utility's system and one-time fees are for development or re-development (where customers "buy-in" based on the system value and expected demands).

Staff is proposing a 5% increase in electric rates (as well as 4% in both water and wastewater, and 3% in stormwater). The rate increases are largely due to the impact of inflation, labor and material costs are raising and the rates must reflect that. Platte River is proposing a 5% wholesale increase to the blended MWh for 2023, and this represents two thirds of the Utility's operating cost.

The Cost of Service model was updated, and Mr. Smith said there is more variability between rate classes than we normally see. There seems to have been a fundamental shift in energy use in residential and industrial (tied to PRPA). Costs have shifted away from small and medium commercial to residential as many people have remained working at home.

Staff expects the average utility bill (with all four utility services) to increase about \$8.00 per month, with approximately \$4.00 of that increase attributed to electricity use.

Chairperson Tenbrink wondered if the base charge will also increase. Mr. Smith said yes, the base charge will also increase. Chairperson Tenbrink also wondered does this year's rate increase compare with the other three owner cities. Mr. Smith said Platte River is increasing their rates by an average of 5%, but Fort Collins is seeing slightly less than Loveland and Longmont, who are expecting 5.5-6% increases; the distinction being that Fort Collins has a slightly flatter load curve than the neighboring communities. Some of that can be attributed to time of day rates, as well as the Utility's Commercial and Industrial coincident demand charge.

Staff is proposing to maintain 2022 solar credit for residential net metering customers (as well as community solar participants and large commercial and industrial customers) but increase the solar credit using a blended wholesale and energy demand structure for small and medium commercial customers.

Plant Investment Fees (PIFs), which are inclusive of Electric Capacity Fees, Water Plant Investment Fees, Wastewater Plant Investment Fees, and Stormwater Plant Investment Fees, are proposed to increase by 9%.

Mr. Smith said the Utility continues to provide high quality services, but unfortunately the cost to deliver those services is increasing. The Income Qualified Assistance Program will be presented for adoption at City Council the same night as 2023 Rates and Fees. Mr. Smith points out that if IQAP is not formally adopted, the current program participants will see a 28% increase in their bill (due to the program ending and the rate increase happening simultaneously).

Vice Chairperson Becker noticed the differential between the on-peak and off-peak periods seems to be closing, which may impact the incentive to shift electric usage to off-peak hours. Mr. Smith said that as we get closer to 2030 and we begin to utilize more renewables in the energy portfolio, he expects to see the need for a seasonal energy rate, which will create a larger distinction once again.

Board member Giovando asked if 5% is the full realization of the cost increase or did staff try to keep this increase under Mr. Smith's 5% rate ceiling. Mr. Smith said 5% is close to what will be needed in 2023, but he does anticipate a few years between now and 2030 where 7-8% rate increases may be necessary due to inflation.

Board member Ramirez noted that it would be helpful to preface the rates discussion before City Council that staff does not feel good about the 5% increase but go into detail about why it's necessary. Vice

MINUTES

CITY OF FORT COLLINS • BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS



ENERGY BOARD

REGULAR MEETING

Chairperson Becker added that the Utility's rates have always been and remain competitive, but the financial health of the Utility is important. Chairperson Tenbrink noted that nationwide, some utilities are experiencing over 10% increases, and he is relieved that ours is currently only at 5%.

Board member Braslau added that this discussion also supports the need and necessity to formally adopt IQAP as a permanent program.

Board member Aghababian moved the Energy Board support the proposed changes to 2023 electric utility rates and fees, provided City Council also adopts the Income Qualified Assistance Program to support the rate increase.

Board member Giovando seconded the motion.

Discussion:

Vice Chairperson Becker said the utility must stay solvent, but there is a large group of people who would be negatively affected. City staff needs to help draw the connection to the Utility's most vulnerable customers because a 28% rate increase is significant.

The motion passed unanimously, 9-0.

Board member Braslau encouraged Board members to attend the November 1st Council meeting in support of the IQAP.

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

Board member Gould heard a story on NPR about a report on the issues of rebuilding burned homes in Boulder County. A company, RESTORE Passive House, is offerings ready-to-go complete packages for rebuilding homes in the Marshall Fire area. The homes will be built by Joubert Building, a certified Passive House builder. Board member Braslau added that many people affected by the Marshall Fire are grossly under-insured, and it is proving to be extremely costly to rebuild. Nevertheless, rebuilding to newer energy standards also adds resilience to the home. Board member Fassler added that so far, less than 10 of the rebuilt homes will be to the passive house standard, noting that the economics of that build are tough. Most people are either unable to see the benefit or unable to meet the cost of it.

Vice Chairperson Becker recently attend the RE+ trade show and attended a session on the fleet electrification of school busses. He said the grid upgrades would be necessary to accommodate the new capacity, but there was much interest to develop projects. He found the session very encouraging and gave him a positive outlook on the industry.

Chairperson Tenbrink has a cousin who is in the beginning stages of replacing their furnace and Mr. Tenbrink was surprised by the cost difference in the quoted systems. An 80% efficiency unit was nearly a quarter of the price of a dual fuel heat pump system, which ranged from \$4,000 to \$20,000. Mr. Tholl said the Inflation Reduction Act may soon be incentivizing heat pumps up to \$8,000, hopefully by 2023.

Board member Braslau reported that France passed a climate and resilience law in July requiring an energy rating (a letter grade assigned) for all homes. It is measured by consumption in energy per square meter per year and as of January 1, 2023, there will be a requirement: residences with ratings of "G" (450 kWh/m²/year or 45 kWh/square foot/year) or worse will no longer be permitted to be rented. The intention is to get landlords to invest in energy upgrades.

Board members Gould, Aghababian, and Fassler will not be reapplying for another term on the Energy



CITY OF FORT COLLINS • BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS



ENERGY BOARD

REGULAR MEETING

Board. Board members Ramirez and Braslau have reapplied.

FUTURE AGENDA REVIEW

The October work session will be cancelled.

In November the Board will have an update from the Utilities Executive Director, as well as a presentation from John Phelan on Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act.

ADJOURNMENT

The Energy Board adjourned at 7:10 pm.